
WOODBURY COUNTY 
ZONING COMMISSION 

Monday, March 27, 2023 at 6:00 PM 
The Zoning Commission will hold a public meeting on Monday, March 27, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the 1st Floor Board of 
Supervisor’s Meeting Room, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, IA.  Please use the 7th St. 
entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting will also be made available during the meeting by telephone. 
Persons wanting to participate in the public meeting and public hearings on the agenda may attend in person or call:  
(712) 454-1133 and enter the Conference ID: 516 721 135# during the meeting to listen or comment.  It is recommended 
to attend in person as there is the possibility for technical difficulties with phone and computer systems. 

AGENDA

1 CALL TO ORDER

2 ROLL CALL

3 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

4 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: February 27, 2023

5 ITEM(S) OF BUSINESS

» PUBLIC HEARING: KERR ADDITION, MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL ON PARCEL #884735100002
K&L Legacy Farms, LLC (Peter Kerr & Jean Kerr) have filed for a two (2) lot minor subdivision on the property identified as Parcel 
#884735100002 in the NW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 35, T88N R47W (Woodbury Township).  The property is located in the Agricultural 
Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is also located in the Special Flood Hazard Area (Zone A – Floodplain).   

» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: WOODBURY COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040 UPDATE

6 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

7 COMMISSIONER COMMENT OR INQUIRY

8 STAFF UPDATE

9 ADJOURN

1



 

1 
 

Minutes - Woodbury County Zoning Commission Meeting – February 27, 2023 
 
The Zoning Commission (ZC) meeting convened on the 27th of February at 6:00 PM in the first-floor boardroom in 
the Woodbury County Courthouse.  The meeting was also made available via teleconference.   
 
ZC Members Present: Tom Bride, Corey Meister, Jeff O’Tool 
County Staff Present:     Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton 
Public Present: Dolf Ivener, Dan Bittinger 
 
Call to Order 
Vice Chair Tom Bride formally called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None.   
 
Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes – November 28, 2022  
Motion by O’Tool to approve the minutes. Second: Meister.  Motion approved 3-0. 
 
Election of Chair of Zoning Commission for 2023 
O’Tool nominated and motioned for Chris Zellmer Zant to serve as Chair.  Second by Meister.  Motion approved 3-0. 
 
Election of Vice Chair of Zoning Commission for 2023 
Meister nominated and motioned for Tom Bride to serve as Vice-Chair.  Second by O’Tool.  Motion approved 3-0. 
 
Public Hearing: Barker Addition, Minor Subdivision Proposal on Parcel #874704300003 
Priestley read the preliminary report and staff recommendation into the record.  Dolf Ivener on behalf of the Maxys 
Family Farm LLC and the Brian and Bonnie Ivener Trust have filed for a six (6) lot minor subdivision.  The proposal 
is being presented concurrently with a Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from the Agricultural 
Perseveration (AP) Zoning District to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District.  Both proposals have been properly 
noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on February 11. 2023.  The neighbors within 1000 FT have been 
duly notified via a February 10, 2023, letter about the February 27, 2023, Zoning Commission Public Hearing.  
Appropriate stakeholders have been notified and requested to comment.  The Woodbury County Engineer found the 
proposal in compliance with Iowa Code closure requirements and found that the lots have adequate access.  
Extraterritorial review was waived by the City of Sergeant Bluff with the adoption of Resolution 23-01 on January 10, 
2023.  A small portion of the property that is not in any buildable area is located in the Special Flood Hazard Area 
(Zone A – Floodplain).  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and 
Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval. Staff recommends approval with the 
condition that the property owner sign pavement agreements for any future paving along Barker Avenue and 230th 
Street.  The surveyor addressed the County Engineer’s concerns regarding a typographical error on the plat.  The 
change has been made and highlighted.  Dolf Ivener stated one lot is in the path of a proposed future pipeline.  
Siouxland District Health will be involved with the placement of wells and septic systems and will require special 
systems if they are to be located in any floodplain area.  The draft future floodplain map which will come out in 
approximately June 2024 shows the area will likely be removed from the floodplain. The Woodbury County Treasurer 
shows taxes due for the parcel; the final plat can’t be recorder until taxes are paid.  Ivener will bring them up to date. 
Motion to close public hearing: O’Tool.  Second: Meister. Motion approved 3-0.  Motion to approve by O’Tool to 
recommend approval of the Barker Addition to Board of Supervisor’s with condition a pavement agreement be signed 
for future grading and hard surfacing of Barker Avenue and 230th Street.  Second: Meister.  Motion approved 3-0. 
 
Public Hearing:  Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) from AP to AE Proposal – Portion of Parcel 
#874704300003 
Priestley read the preliminary report and staff recommendation into the record.  Dolf Ivener on behalf of Maxys Family 
Farm LLC and the Brian and Bonnie Ivener Trust have filed an application for a zoning ordinance map amendment 
(rezone) on property currently zoned Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District 
for the propose of establishing six residential lots through a concurrent minor subdivision application. This proposal 
has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journals Legals Section on February 11, 2023.  The neighbors within 
1000 FT have been notified via a February 10, 2023, letter about the February 27, 2023, Zoning Commission public 
hearing and have been requested to comment.  As of February 22, 2023, no comments or inquiries have been 
received.  Appropriate stakeholders  including government agencies, utilities and organizations have been notified 
and have been requested to comment.  No objections were received from the stakeholders.  Based on the information 
received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate 
criteria for approval.  It is the recommendation of staff to approve this zoning ordinance map amendment (rezone) to 
the AE Zoning District. O’Tool inquired about the Corn Suitability Rating as part of the rezone consideration process.  
Priestley indicated that this is one of the several criteria for consideration of the rezone based on the general plan.  
The future land use map of the development plan is the key criteria for classifying rezones.  Motion to close the public 
hearing Meister.  Second: O’Tool.  Motion approved 3-0.  Motion to recommend acceptance and approval of the 

2



 

 
 

2

zoning ordinance map amendment from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estate (AE) Zoning 
District to the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors by Meister.  Second O’Tool.  Motion approved 3-0. 
 
Information/Discussion: Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040 Update 
SIMPCO is in the process of putting together the 2040 Plan, Zoning Commission Chair Chris Zeller Zan is part of the 
SIMPCO steering committee for this process.  The comprehensive plan is an ongoing process to identity goals for 
future land use and expansion for business, residential and commercial areas within the county.  Cities within the 
county also have their own comprehensive plans, the goal is to work in harmony to present a plan that works together 
with the cities and rural areas.  When completed, the plan will be presented to Zoning Commission and the Board of 
Supervisors along with be public meetings for input.   
 
Information/Discussion: The New woodburycountyiowa.gov Website 
Priestley offered information about the new Woodbury County website.  Content on the website was discussed 
including the ability to sign up for notifications about public meetings. 
 
Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
Bride inquired about the citys’ ability to exercise zoning within 2 miles of their corporate boundaries.  Priestley 
discussed exterritorial review under subdivisions and noted that Iowa Code has subdividing and county zoning in 
separate chapters with separate parameters.  City’s have the authority under Iowa Code to place regulations on 
properties through subdivisions.  In Woodbury County, the county regulates zoning outside of the corporate limits.   
 
Staff Update 
Priestley stated that the Board of Supervisors formally received the Zoning Commission’s recommendation and 
final report on the draft pipeline ordinance (December 6, 2022). 
 
Adjourn 
Motion by O’Tool.  Second: Meister.  3-0.  The meeting adjourned at 7:08 PM. 
 

3



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

PRELIMINARY REPORT – MARCH 24, 2023 
K & L LEGACY FARMS LLC (Peter Kerr & Jean Kerr) 
KERR ADDITION – MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL

APPLICATION DETAILS: 
Owner(s): K&L Legacy Farms, LLC (Peter Kerr & Jean Kerr)
Application Type: Minor Subdivision (2 Lots) 
Subdivision Name: Kerr Addition 
Application Date: March 1, 2023
Subdivision Area: 34.34 acres 
Legal Notice Date: March 11, 2023 
Stakeholder (1000’) Letter Date: March 10, 2023
Zoning Commission Public Hearing Date: March 27, 2023
Board of Supervisors Agenda Date: TBD

PROPERTY DETAILS: 
Parcel(s): 884735100002
Township/Range: T88N R47W (Woodbury Township) 
Section: 35 
Quarter: NW ¼ NW ¼  
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain District: Zone A - SFHA 
Address: No address 

TABLE OF CONTENTS: 
Summary, Aerial, Plat Excerpt & Recommendation 
Application 
Final Plat 
Review Criteria 
Extraterritorial Review 
Legal Notification 
Adjacent Owners’ Notification 
Stakeholder Comments 
Supporting Documentation

SUMMARY
K&L Legacy Farms, LLC (Peter Kerr & Jean Kerr) have filed for a two (2) lot minor subdivision on the property identified as Parcel #884735100002 
and referenced above.  This proposal has been property noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on March 11, 2023.  The neighbors within 
1000 FT have been duly notified via a March 10, 2023 letter about the March 27, 2023 Zoning Commission Public Hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders 
including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have be requested to comment.  The Woodbury County Engineer 
found the proposal in compliance with Iowa Code closure requirements and found that the lots have adequate access.  Extraterritorial review, as 
required by Iowa Code 354.9, was waived by the City of Sergeant Bluff with the adoption of Resolution 23-06 on February 28, 2023.  The property is 
located in the Special Flood Hazard Area (Zone A – Floodplain).  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and 
Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.

AERIAL MAP PLAT EXCERPT

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate 
criteria for approval.   

Suggested Motion:  Motion to recommend the approval of the Kerr Addition to the Board of Supervisors.

4



APPLICATION

5



6



7



CED STAFF - REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE)
The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. Per 
these requirements, CED staff:

shall review a subdivision application for completeness and for approval of a final plat by ensuring it is submitted in accordance 
with the standards for a subdivision plat per Iowa Code.
Staff reviewed the subdivision application, deemed it complete, and verified the final plat’s conformance to the County’s Zoning Ordinance, 
Subdivision Ordinance, and the Code of Iowa, all as required by law.
shall accept payment of applicable fees, and distribute copies of the final plat to the Planning & Zoning Commission, the 
appropriate county departments and public utilities; and
Staff received the application fee and the account is paid-in-full.  Staff also distributed copies of the application, final plat, and other materials 
to all relevant stakeholders as required.
shall coordinate with the County Engineer who shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the engineering design 
standards of these regulations and to verify accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data; and
Staff have received written confirmation that the County Engineer has reviewed and determined that the final plat conforms to the engineering 
and design standards of these regulations, and he has verified the accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data.
shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the design standards of these regulations and with the required form of 
the plat and related documents; and
Staff verified that the final plat conforms to the design standards of these regulations, as well as the required form of the final plat.  If there are 
any mortgages or leans on the property, consent to plat certifications must be either on the final plat or recorded as a separate attachment.  If 
there are any city council resolutions for extraterritorial review waiving or approving the final plat, they must be either on the final plat or 
recorded as a separate attachment.  
shall assure conformance with the goals and objectives of the County’s General Plan, the CED staff may make recommendations 
for conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort, 
and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties.
Staff attest to the final plat conforming to the goals and objectives of the county plan.  Staff recommends approval of the final plat.

ZONING COMMISSION - REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE)
The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. Per 
these requirements, the Planning and Zoning Commission:

shall conduct a public hearing on a final plat for a minor subdivision. Notice of the date, time and location of the hearing will be 
mailed to the owners of all property within 1,000 feet for the subject property not less than four nor more than twenty days prior to 
the date of the hearing; and
Staff have ensured that the legal requirements have been met for publicly noticing this public hearing, all as required by law. Staff have also 
ensured the notice requirement for adjacent landowners within 1000 FT have also been met. 
shall review the final plat and the staff reports and other information presented to determine whether the plat conforms to the 
ordinances, general plan and other policies of the county; and
Staff have compiled, reviewed, and analyzed all relevant materials to determine whether the plat conforms to the ordinances, general plan, and 
other policies of the County, or not.  Staff provided this information in a “Staff Report” format and made them available to the Commission well 
in advance of the required public hearing. The Commission also held a public hearing to review, analyze, and discuss the final plat and other 
relevant information.  If there are any mortgages or leans on the property, consent to plat certifications must be either on the final plat or 
recorded in the Recorder’s office as a separate document/attachment.  If there are any city council resolutions for extraterritorial review waiving 
or approving the final plat, they must be either on the final plat or recorded in the Recorder’s office as a separate document/attachment.  
may recommend specific conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties; and
Staff does not recommend any specific conditions for this final plat. However, specific conditions (if any) may be recommended by the 
Commission.
shall forward a report of its finding and a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors. The recommendation shall be in the form of 
a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat materials. A copy of the report and the resolution shall also be forwarded to the 
property owner, the subdivider and the land surveyor for the subdivision.
During its required public hearing on the final plat, the Board of Supervisors will receive the final staff report and the Commission's 
recommendation on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Supervisors may table the matter with the 
consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat. Staff will coordinate with the 
subdivider and land surveyor to ensure all copies and recordings are submitted and received, all as required by law. 

EXTRATERRITORIAL REVIEW – CITY RESOLUTION TO BE RECORDED WITH FINAL PLAT
This minor subdivision process requires extraterritorial review under Iowa Code, Section 354.9.  The City of Sergeant Bluff waived their right to 
extraterritorial review with the passage of Resolution No. 23-06 that was passed and approved on the 28th of February, 2023. 

8



9



10



11



LEGAL NOTIFICATION – ZONING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING
Published in the Sioux City Journal Legals section on March 11, 2023. 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION – 1000 FEET
The 11 property owners within 1,000 FT; and listed within the certified 
abstractor’s affidavit; were notified by a March 10, 2023 letter of the 
public hearing before the Woodbury County Zoning Commission on 
March 27, 2023. 

As of March 22, 2023, the Community and Economic Development 
office has received the following comments.  The names of the property 
owners are listed below. 

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they 
will be provided at the meeting. 

Name Address City State Zip COMMENTS: 

K&L Legacy Farms LLC 1620 210th Street Sgt. Bluff IA 51054 No comments. 
Trustees of the Joint Revocable Trust of Peter A. Kerr 
and Jean A. Kerr 1620 210th Street Sgt. Bluff IA 51054 No comments. 

F. Svuba Farms, Inc 43653 150th Ave. Laurens IA 50554 No comments. 

Gina Green and Linda Hoffmeier 2630 250th St. Denison IA 51442 No comments. 

Sara Ann Peterson and Roger Douglas Edwards 
4236 Hickory Lane, Apt 
301 Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 

Trustee of the Agnes L. Hoffmann Revocable Trust 301 Dakota Dunes Blvd. Dakota Dunes  SD 57049 No comments. 

Union Pacific Railroad 
1400 Douglas Street 
STOP 1640 Omaha NE 

68179-
1640 No comments. 

D & JL, LLC 35855 C-38 Le Mars IA 51031 No comments. 

Terry Lester 1575 210th St. Sgt. Bluff IA 51054 No comments. 

Kermit Farms, LLC 23725 100th St. Hornick IA 51026 No comments. 
Donald R. Hamann, Trustee of the Donald R. Hamann 
Revocable Trust and Lorna G. Hamann, Trustee of the 
Lorna G. Hamann Revocable Trust 

304 Division Street, PO 
Box M Anton IA 

51004-
0603 No comments. 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments.
FARMERS DRAINAGE DISTRICT: No comments.
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments.
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): No conflicts for MEC gas either. – Tyler Ahlquist, 3/3/23
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): I have reviewed for attached proposed minor subdivision for MEC electric, we have no 

conflicts. – Casey Meinen, 3/3/23
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request, NIPCO has no facilities at or adjacent to this 

location. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 3/8/23.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments.
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: SEE MEMO BELOW:
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: Looks good to me. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 3/6/23.

12



WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC):

No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT:

The WCSWCD has no comments on this proposal. – Neil Stockfleth, 3/3/23. 

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: The taxes are current.  The September 2022 payment was made on 9/15/22 and the 
March 2023 payment was made on 2/1/2023. – Kim Koepke, 3/3/23

REVIEW MEMO – MARK J. NAHRA, PE – WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER, SECONDARY ROADS DEPARTMENT

13



PARCEL REPORT

14



15



ZONING MAP

16



FLOODPLAIN REPORT – EFFECTIVE MAP

17



FLOODPLAIN REPORT – DRAFT MAP

https://ifis.iowafloodcenter.org/ifis/newmaps/hazard/ 

18



BASE FLOOD ELEVATION DETERMINATION

19



SOIL REPORT

20



SOIL MAP

21



ELEVATION

22



WELL & SEPTIC LOCATIONS

23


	Minutes - Woodbury County Zoning Commission Meeting – February 27, 2023



